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25 
decision 

I. Treaty 7 Opening

II. Chair’s Opening Remarks

III. Review of Agenda

IV. Consent Agenda (5 minutes)
A. Minutes of the January 30, 2019 Board Meeting

V. Business Arising (10 minutes)

A. Business Arising from the Minutes

B. Advocacy Updates, including ALTA Report (5 minutes)

VI. Chair’s Report (5 minutes)

A. Board-Community Library Connections

VII. Chief Executive Officer’s Report (10 minutes)
Mr. Bill Ptacek, CEO

A. Services to Day Homes
Mr. Mark Asberg, Director, Service Delivery

VIII. Audit & Finance Committee (30 minutes)

A. Report of the March 19, 2019 Meeting
Mr. Andrew Rodych, Committee Chair

B. Audited Financial Statement

C. Annual City Allocation for Life Cycle Asset Management Updates 27 
decision 

Risk Register Revision 29 
information 
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IX. Strategy & Community Committee (15 minutes)   
 
A. Report of the March 12, 2019 Meeting  38 

(based on draft unapproved minutes) information 
Mr. Isaac Elias, Committee Chair 
 

B. Increasing Hours of Service 41 
information 

 
C. Board Advocacy Priorities Updates  49 

information 
 
 

X. Governance Committee (15 minutes)   
 
A. Report of the March 6, 2019 Meeting  51 

(based on draft unapproved minutes) information 
Ms. Shereen Samuels, Committee Chair 

 
B. 2019 Board Schedule Calendar 55 

 decision 
 
 
 

XI. Calgary Public Library Foundation Update (10 minutes) verbal 
Ms. Debra Giles and Ms. Janet Hutchinson, CPL Board Representatives information 

 
A. CPL Foundation Update  55 

 information 
 
XII. In Camera separate package 

 discussion 
 

 
XIII. Other Business (5 minutes) 
 
 
XIV. Adjournment 
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Treaty 7 Opening 

 

We are gathered here today at a place called Moh’kinsstis, a Blackfoot word that means elbow. 
The word describes the landscape of what is now known as Calgary, an area where the Elbow 
River meets the Bow River.  
 
It is in the spirit of respect and truth that we honour and acknowledge Moh’kinsstis, and recognize 
the traditional territories and oral practices of the Blackfoot people, the Nakoda people of the 
Stoney Nation, the Beaver people of the Tsuut’ina Nation, and the Métis Nation of Alberta, Region 
Three. This Library is one of 21 libraries across our city built on this traditional land. Finally, we 
acknowledge all people who make their homes in the Treaty 7 territory of Southern Alberta. 
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CEO REPORT 

MARCH 2019 

 

GOVERNMENT RELATIONS 

Darrel Bell, Director of Facility Management for the City of Calgary, stopped by this week to assure 
us that the Symons Valley project is now moving ahead. They have funding for all of the 
infrastructure and there are other partners such as The City’s Arts and Culture Department who 
have capital and operating funding to have a presence at the new facility. I reminded him that this 
new library is several years behind our expected schedule and will need to accommodate Engine 
23, which will move there after its temporary home at Louise Riley Library. The small, leased 
space that Sage Hill Library operates from remains a temporary solution until this new facility is 
built and is often bursting with activity and at times has patrons with laptops using the floor for 
seating. 

We have yet to receive a building permit for the temporary structure at Louise Riley that will house 
Engine 23. The project has navigated community association concerns and is now working with 
the planning department to correct some technical details that have delayed our building permit. 
This will be our final project with DIALOG before moving to a new architecture firm, BRZ. 

Darrel also mentioned that planning for Forest Lawn and North Hill were moving along. It is his 
intention to have enough of the preplanning done so that in the next capital budget process the 
construction of those facilities can be funded. Both projects include new libraries that will get us 
well on the way to the replacement of all inner-city libraries. 

Central Library continues to be a big draw for visitors and an international inspiration. This week 
we had visitors from the City of Marion in South Australia and the Royal Museum in British 
Columbia. Next month we will host the Public Library Association Executive Board meeting as 
well as the Charlotte Mecklenburg Library and the King County Library. Then in May, with support 
from the Foundation, we are hosting the Urban Libraries “Lessons from the Field.” That two-day 
conference will focus on how to “Start a Revolution” at your library and the importance of “getting 
stuff done.”  

A highlight from last week was when Mayor Nenshi insisted that Canada’s Minister of 
Infrastructure and Communities, François-Philippe Champagne, see the Central Library before 
the announcement of the Federal funding for the BMO Centre Expansion. He greatly enjoyed his 
visit and we could not get him out of the Children’s Library were patrons we giving him 
spontaneous testimonials about how much their kids love coming to the Library. He also greatly 
enjoyed his behind the scenes tour of the Automated Materials Handling machine on Level 2. By 
the time he reached the press conference, he was so impressed that he mentioned the Central 
Library twice! 
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OPERATIONS 

At the end of Q1, I am happy to report progress on several major 2019 Strategic Initiatives.  

Following a public RFP, the internal leadership group overseeing the website project selected 
Calgary-based digital agency Evans Hunt to redevelop our website with a focus on the user 
experience and backend integration. This important work will result in a website that support 
learning and empowers our users to discover all the Library has to offer.  

On June 1, the Library will host Superhero Day. A new multi-library activation modeled on the 
successful Star Wars Day from late 2017. Crowfoot, Country Hills, Central, Quarry Park, and 
Village Square 
will be transformed into Calgary Public Library Superhero Headquarters and feature free, family 
programming. This program will tie into membership campaigns to reach 800,000 members, as 
well as kick-off registration for the Ultimate Summer Challenge program. This new project also 
supports us to activate a community hub (Village Square) and offer accessible, family 
programming. 

Our dedication to Early Literacy and Community is being demonstrated by a great project 
related to the renovation of the Fish Creek Early Learning Centre. We are currently exploring the 
acquisition of a CTrain car to include in the space with Calgary Transit. Fish Creek was our first 
Early Learning Centre and we would like to incorporate all that we have learned into this important 
location. 

Enhancing patron access and connection through technology continues to move ahead as 
wireless upgrades have been completed at all locations throughout the system. One of the 
benefits of these upgrades is that it is now easier for patrons to connect to the Library’s wireless 
network. Once a patron has authenticated a device manually for a first time, the device will 
automatically re-authenticate each time the patron enters the range of the Library’s wireless 
network. Occasionally, patrons will need to re-authenticate for security reasons, but overall the 
process will be much more seamless for everyone. Wireless sessions across the system for the 
first two months of the year are showing significant growth (over 50% each month year over year). 

The Library’s commitment to Reconciliation and the expansion of Indigenous services and 
programs continues to be successful thanks to the work of our staff. 

In January the Province announced funding for an Indigenous Languages Resource Centre at 
Calgary Public Library at a media event and blanket ceremony for Premier Notley and Minister 
Ceci. 

The Indigenous Languages Resource Centre will help protect, preserve, and promote Indigenous 
culture, thanks to $1 million in funding from the Government of Alberta. Located at Central Library, 
this will be the third centre of its kind in Canada, where anyone, with their free Library card, can 
access language learning, storytelling, elder guidance, and other materials. The project, which 
builds connections, supports lifelong learning and deepens understanding of community, is 
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launching at the same time the United Nations declared 2019 as the Year of Indigenous 
Languages. 

  

 

Renowned Indigenous author Richard Van Camp brought much warmth and laughter to this cold 
city in his whirlwind tour, as part of the Library’s Freedom to Read celebrations. Over a period of 
three days, Richard was involved in hosting the Alberta premiere of his film Three Feathers in 
partnership with Wordfest; attended the Freedom to Read presentation of his book to City Council; 
hosted a drop-in storytime at Central Library; delivered a keynote presentation to educators on 
bringing truth and reconciliation into the classroom; and participated in a half-day session with 
elders on language and story-telling. His visit was inspiring and made many readers happy as 
evidenced by the fact that three of the ten fiction titles on Calgary’s current bestseller list are Van 
Camp books! 

Other activities: 

• The Elders’ Guidance Circle is coming to life and is becoming a well utilized space by the 
elders and community. Work is taking place to develop a consistent schedule to share 
with Library Connect and other libraries that could host elders with the goal being 
consistent programming. 

• Terese Mailhot’s reading of Heart Berries attracted 65 people, including University of 
Calgary students discussing her book as part of their curriculum.  

• White Cane week was February 3-9 and the Central Library hosted the Canadian Council 
for the Blind on February 6 and 7, so they could promote awareness of their services and 
answer questions from our patrons. We were able to showcase the new accessible 
technology available at the Library for their staff and learn more about their organization. 

Wrapping up 2018 and in response to a query from the Board, we did some analysis on physical 
visits to community libraries compared to the year before. See the attached chart for details, which 
includes monthly raw numbers and percentage year over year changes in visit numbers at every 
location. Some conclusions we might draw from this exercise are: 
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• Libraries in growth areas of the city (Sage Hill, Saddletowne, Shawnessy) experienced 
strong increases in visits. 

• Village Square, Country Hills, and Crowfoot were all under renovation for several months 
in 2018, resulting in some loss of visits. As well, Central predictably lost visits in the short 
transition to new Central Library when old Central Library operations were phased out.  

• These numbers do not include any visits for Rocky Ridge, which may be pulling some 
people from Crowfoot where parking and overcrowding can be an issue. Likewise, Sage 
Hill is very likely drawing patrons from Country Hills and Crowfoot. 

• Libraries in very established areas (Nicholls Family, Giuffre Family, Judith Umbach, Louise 
Riley, Signal Hill, and Southwood) show plateaued or slightly declining visit numbers. 
These libraries are not large enough to attract or accommodate large number of new 
users. As well, several of these facilities are aging significantly (Southwood, Judith 
Umbach, Louise Riley) and have very limited parking (Nicholls Family, Giuffre Family, 
Judith Umbach). Opportunities for enhancing existing space (Louise Riley, Nicholls 
Family) and eventual replacement of libraries (Giuffre Family, Judith Umbach, Southwood) 
are being discussed, even as they are certainly long-term projects. 

• Fish Creek visit numbers are basically flat in 2018. The team there has renewed and 
increased outreach efforts, the ELC is being refreshed, and a space dedicated to activities 
for school age children is under development, all this to draw more community members 
back to the space.  

• The revitalization of Memorial Park as a hub of arts and culture activity has resulted in 
continued growth in visits.  

• Forest Lawn leads all the community libraries in year over year visit growth (excluding 
Sage Hill, which was only open half of 2017). Forest Lawn continues to draw more and 
more community members into its spaces through strong programming and outreach 
efforts and in response to high needs in the surrounding community.  

• New Central Library had tremendous attendance in the first two months. 

• Bowness and Nose Hill were both solid contributors, as their visit numbers were reliably 
in the green for the year.  

• After a strong first year that vastly exceeded attendance numbers at the old Glenmore 
Landing Library, Quarry Park numbers declined slightly in 2018. The team there has 
increased outreach efforts and extra programming hours have been assigned to the 
Library to increase numbers. 

• Weather can negatively impact attendance at community libraries. During the difficult 
weather of February and March 2018, 13 of 19 community libraries experienced declining 
visits. 
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Looking Forward  

• 2019 has started strongly with double digit increases in visit numbers for both January and 
February. In both months, more libraries showed increased visits than decreased visits. 

• 2019 is a year in which we will focus more strongly on community libraries, ensuring that 
we are promoting libraries throughout the city (e.g. Superhero Day, Love Your Library 
Day). 

• All service and program categories, including the circulation of physical items, are showing 
increases in the first two months of 2019. 

 

Other 
 

On Tuesday, May 14, the Library Foundation will hold its Annual General Meeting. This will be 
Pat Moore’s last meeting. Carl Landry will be taking over the Chair. Brenda Nichols will also be 
retiring. The Foundation will add four new members to its Board and Eli Mattheson, the 
Superintendent for the Construction of the Central Library will be the speaker. This event will be 
held in the TD Great Reading Room on the fourth floor from 5:30 until 7:30pm. Silence will not be 
required for this event. 
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Report to the 
Audit & Finance Committee 
Calgary Public Library Board 

March 19, 2019 
2018 Audited Financial Statements Report 

I. ISSUE

Review of Draft Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

II. BACKGROUND

Representatives from Deloitte will be in attendance at the committee meeting to present their 
report and review the results of their audit. 

III. RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Calgary Public Library Board’s Audit & Finance Committee recommend that the Calgary 
Public Library Board: 

a. Receive Deloitte's Year-end Communication on 2018 audit results dated March 19, 2019
for information.

b. Approve the Draft Audited Financial Statements of the Calgary Public Library Board for
the year ended December 31, 2018.

Elrose J Klause, CPA,CMA 
Controller and Director, Financial Services 

Attachments: 
1. Year-end Communication to the Calgary Public Library Board (separate attachment)
2. 2018 Draft Audited Financial Statements (separate attachment)
3. Oversight of the External Auditor: Guidance for Audit Committees (online)

https://www.cpacanada.ca/en/business-and-accounting-resources/audit-and-
assurance/enhancing-audit-quality/publications/external-auditor-oversight-audit-
committee-guidance

4. Annual Assessment of the External Auditor: Tool for Audit Committees (online)
https://www.cpacanada.ca/en/business-and-accounting-resources/audit-and-
assurance/enhancing-audit-quality/publications/annual-assessment-of-external-auditor-
tool
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The Calgary Public Library Board 
Report to the Audit and Finance 
Committee on the 2018 audit 
March 19, 2019 



Dear Audit and Finance Committee members: 

We are pleased to submit this report on the status of our audit of The 
Calgary Public Library Board (“the Library”) for the 2018 fiscal year. This 
report summarizes the scope of our audit, our findings to date and reviews 
certain other matters that we believe to be of interest to you.  

As agreed in our master services agreement dated October 16, 2018, we 
have performed an audit of the financial statements of Calgary Public 
Library as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“Canadian GAAS”) 
and expect to issue our audit report thereon dated March 27, 2019. 

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with the audit plan that was 
presented to the Audit and Finance Committee at the meeting on October 
16, 2018. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit and 
Finance Committee , management and others within the Library and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

We, at Deloitte, work as one team to provide you with relevant business 
insights to assist you improving your current practices. 

We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the outcome of our 
audit with you and answering any questions you may have. 

Yours truly, 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Deloitte LLP 
700, 850 2 Street SW 
Calgary, AB T2P 0R8 
Canada 

Tel: 403-267-1700 
Fax: 403-213-5791 
www.deloitte.ca 

March 15, 2019 

To the Audit and Finance Committee of 
The Calgary Public Library Board 

Report on audited annual financial statements 
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Our audit explained 
This report summarizes the main findings arising from our audit to date. When possible, we have also 
provided business recommendations on challenging issues that the Library faces, based on our 
understanding of your organization and industry. 

Audit scope and terms of engagement 
We have been asked to perform an audit, which 
includes the Library’s financial statements (the 
“financial statements”) in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards (“PSAS”) as at and 
for the year ended December 31, 2018. Our audit 
was conducted in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted auditing standards (“Canadian GAAS”). 
The terms and conditions of our engagement are 
described in the master services agreement dated 
October 16, 2018, which was signed on behalf of the 
Audit and Finance Committee and management. 

Significant audit risks 
Through our risk assessment process, we have 
identified the significant audit risks. These risks of 
material misstatement and related audit responses are 
discussed in the significant audit risks section of this 
report. 

Materiality 
We are responsible for providing reasonable 
assurance that your financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement. 
Materiality levels are determined on the basis of total 
revenues. Our materiality for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 was $2,000,000 (2017, 
$1,700,000). 
We have informed the Audit and Finance Committee 
of all uncorrected misstatements greater than a 
clearly trivial amount of 5% of materiality and any 
misstatements that are, in our judgment, qualitatively 
material. In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we 
asked that any misstatements be corrected. 

Audit fees 
Our final audit fees are as follows: 

Base audit fee: $39,700 (2017, $38,800).  
Adoption of new accounting standards: $8,000 (2017, 
$ nil). 
These fees are subject to a 7% administration fee and 
GST.  

Scope and terms of 
engagement Materiality Significant audit risks Audit fees
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Status and outstanding matters 
We expect to be in a position to render our audit 
opinion dated March 27, 2019 on the financial 
statements of the Library following approval of the 
financial statements by the Calgary Public Library 
Board and the completion of the following outstanding 
procedures: 
 Receipt of signed management representation 

letter 
 Receipt of legal letters 
 Receipt of signed subsequent events letter 

 
 Minor documentation items 

Uncorrected misstatements 
There were no uncorrected misstatements identified.  

  

  

  

Going concern 
Management has completed its 
assessment of the ability of the 
Library to continue as a going 
concern and in making its 
assessment did not identify any 
material uncertainties related to 
events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt upon the 
Library's ability to continue as a 
going concern. We agree with 
management’s assessment. 

Business Insights 
During the course of our audit, we 
examined the accounting 
procedures and internal controls 
employed by the Library. We have 
not identified any matters that 
need to be communicated to the 
Audit and Finance Committee. 

Uncorrected disclosure 
misstatements  
There are no disclosure 
misstatements identified.  

  

Status and 
outstanding 

matters
Going concern Business 

insights
Uncorrected 

misstatements
Uncorrected 
disclosure 

misstatements
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Fraud risk 
A summary of the results of our audit procedures 
designed to address the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements relating to 
fraud is provided in the significant audit risks section 
of this report.  
Based on the audit evidence obtained, our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
due to fraud remain appropriate. 

Independence 
We have developed appropriate safeguards and 
procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or 
to reduce them to an acceptable level.  
We confirm that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

  

  

  

Significant accounting practices, judgments 
and estimates 
The significant accounting practices, judgments and 
estimates include: 
 The estimates of useful lives and potential 

impairment of tangible capital assets 
 Accrued liabilities  
In our judgement, the significant accounting 
practices and policies, selected and applied by 
management are, in all material respects, acceptable 
under PSAS and are appropriate to the particular 
circumstances of the Library. 
In our judgement, the significant accounting 
estimates made by management are, in all material 
respects, free from possible management bias and of 
material misstatement. 

Conclusion 
In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is 
designed to enable us to express an opinion on the 
fairness of the presentation of the Library's annual 
financial statements prepared in accordance with PSAS. 
No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our 
audit. In performing the audit, we were given full and 
complete access to the accounting records, supporting 
documentation and other information requested. 
We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the 
financial statements of the Library for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 once the outstanding items 
referred to above are completed satisfactorily and the 
financial statements are approved by the Calgary Public 
Library Board. 
A draft version of our auditor’s report is included in 
Appendix 2. 

 

Fraud risk
Significant accounting 
practices, judgments 

and estimates
Independence Conclusion
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Significant audit risks 
The significant audit risks identified as part of our risk assessment, together with our planned responses and 
conclusions, are described below. 

Management override of controls 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Under Canadian Auditing 
Standards, it is the responsibility of 
management, with the oversight of 
those charged with governance to 
place a strong emphasis on fraud 
prevention and detection. 
Oversight by those charged with 
governance includes considering 
the potential for override of 
controls or other inappropriate 
influence over the financial 
reporting process. 
Management override of controls is 
present in all entities. It is a risk of 
material misstatement resulting 
from fraud and therefore is 
considered as a significant risk. 
This represents a fraud risk for the 
2018 audit. 

We discussed fraud with management. 
We asked the Audit and Finance 
Committee for their views about the risk 
of fraud, whether they know of any actual 
or suspected fraud affecting the Library 
and their role in the oversight of 
management’s antifraud programs. 
We tested a sample of journal entries 
made throughout the period, and 
adjustments made at the end of the 
reporting period. 
We evaluated the business rationale for 
any significant unusual transactions. 
We determined whether the judgements 
and decisions related to management 
estimates indicate a possible bias, which 
included performing retrospective 
analysis of significant accounting 
estimates. 

We obtained sufficient 
audit evidence to conclude 
that there were no 
material misstatements. 
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New Accounting Standards 

Risk identified  Our audit response  Audit results 

The following accounting standards 
are required to be adopted for the 
year ending December 31, 2018: 
 Section PS 2200, Related Party 

Disclosures 
 Section PS 3210, Assets 
 Section PS 3320, Contingent 

Assets 
 Section PS 3380, Contractual 

Rights 
 Section PS 3420, Inter-entity 

Transactions 
There is a risk that the application 
of these standards is not consistent 
or compliant with the guidance 
provided within the standards. 

  We reviewed the Library’s methodology 
and process for application and adoption 
of each standard, which included a review 
of position papers prepared by 
management. 

 We audited a sample of the accounting 
transactions recorded under these 
standards, including testing of internal 
controls, if applicable. 

 We also reviewed the disclosure in the 
year-end financial statements to ensure 
compliance with the applicable accounting 
standards. 

 During our testing of 
Related Party Disclosures, 
we noted one Board 
member, for whom there 
was no signed declaration 
as the member was not in 
attendance at the 
November 2018 meeting 
when declarations were 
signed. We recommend 
management implement a 
process for following up 
with Board members to 
obtain signed declarations 
for all Board members.  

With the exception of the 
one matter, we obtained 
sufficient audit evidence 
to conclude that there 
were no material 
misstatements in relation 
to the adoption of the new 
accounting standards.  
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Other reportable matters 
The following summarizes the status and findings of key aspects of our audit. In the appendices to this 
report, we have provided additional information related to certain matters we committed to report to the 
Audit and Finance Committee as part of the audit plan. 

Comment 

Changes to the 
audit plan 

The audit was conducted in accordance with our audit plan, which was communicated to 
the Audit and Finance Committee. We confirm that there have been no amendments to 
the audit scope and approach communicated in the audit plan. 

Significant difficulties 
encountered in 
performing the audit 

During the course of our audit, we did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing 
with management related to the performance of the audit. 

Concerns regarding 
management 
competence and 
integrity 

We do not have any concerns regarding management’s competency and integrity. 

Related party 
transactions 

We have not identified any related party transactions that were not in the normal course 
of operations and that involved significant judgments made by management concerning 
measurement or disclosure. 

Disagreements with 
management 

During the current audit, we did not have any disagreements with management. 

Consultation with 
other accountants 

Management has informed us that the Library has not consulted with other accountants 
about auditing or accounting matters. 

Legal and regulatory 
compliance 

Management is responsible for ensuring that the Library’s operations are conducted 
in accordance with the laws and regulations applicable to the Library in the 
jurisdictions in which it operates. The responsibility for preventing and detecting 
non-compliance rests with management. 
The auditor is not and cannot be held responsible for preventing non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 
Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with laws 
and regulations by the Library. 

Post-statement of 
financial position 
events 

At the date of finalizing this report, we are not aware of any significant post-statement 
of financial position events. 
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Appendix 1 – Communication 
requirements 
The table below summarizes our communication requirements under Canadian GAAS and other 
communications that we believe would help us achieve an effective audit. 

Required communication Refer to this report or document 
described below 

Audit Service Plan  

1. Our responsibilities under Canadian GAAS, including forming and 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements 

Master services agreement 

2. An overview of the overall audit strategy, addressing: 
a. Timing of the audit 
b. Significant risks, including fraud risks 
c. Nature and extent of specialized skill or knowledge needed to 

perform the audit procedures related to significant risks  

Audit plan communicated on October 
16, 2018. 

3. Significant transactions outside of the normal course of business, 
including related party transactions 

Nothing to report. 
 

Year End Communication  

4. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process We are not aware of any fraudulent 
events. 
 

5. Significant accounting policies, practices, unusual transactions, and our 
related conclusions 

Significant accounting practices, 
judgements and estimates. 

6. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have 
been discussed with management during the current audit period 

Significant accounting practices, 
judgements and estimates. 

7. Matters related to going concern We concluded that there was no 
substantial doubt about the Library’s 
ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

8. Management judgments and accounting estimates Significant Accounting practices, 
judgements and estimates. 

9. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit No significant difficulties to report. 
 

10. Material written communications between management and us, 
including management representation letters 

Management representation letter. 

11. Other matters that are significant to the oversight of the financial 
reporting process 

No other matters to report. 
 

12. Modifications to our opinion(s) We will issue an unmodified opinion. 

13. Our views of significant accounting or auditing matters for which 
management consulted with other accountants and about which we 
have concerns 

Nothing to report. 
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Required communication Refer to this report or document 
described below 

14. Significant matters discussed with management Nothing to report. 

15. Illegal or possibly illegal acts that come to our attention We are not aware of any illegal acts. 

16. Significant deficiencies in internal control, if any, identified by us in the
conduct of the audit of the financial statements

No deficiencies to report. 

17. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure items No uncorrected misstatements and 
uncorrected disclosures to report. 
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Appendix 2 – Draft version 
of our auditor’s report 
Our report on the financial statements is expected to be in the following form. However, the final form may 
need to be adjusted to reflect the final results of our audit. 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of  
The Calgary Public Library Board 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Calgary Public Library Board (the “Library”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of operations and accumulated 
surplus, cash flows, and change in net financial liabilities for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial 
statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Library as at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations, its cash flows and change 
in its net financial liabilities for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards (“PSAS”). 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“Canadian 
GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Library in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with PSAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Library’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Library or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Library’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Library’s internal control.

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Library’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Library to cease to continue as a going concern.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

(To be signed Deloitte LLP) 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
March 27, 2019 
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Appendix 3 – Draft 
independence 
March 27, 2019 

The Audit and Finance Committee  
The Calgary Public Library Board 

Dear Audit and Finance Committee members: 

We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of The Calgary Public Library Board (“the 
Library”) for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

You have requested that we communicate in writing with you regarding our compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence as well as all relationships and other matters between the Library, our 
Firm and network firms that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. You have also requested us to communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
eliminate identified threats to independence or reduce them to an acceptable level. 

In determining which relationships to report, we have considered relevant rules and related interpretations 
prescribed by the appropriate provincial regulator/ordre and applicable legislation, covering such matters as: 

a. Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client.
b. Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant

influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client.
c. Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners,

either directly or indirectly, with a client.
d. Economic dependence on a client.
e. Provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when 
applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence 
matters arising since March 28, 2018, the date of our last letter. 

We are not aware of any relationships between the Deloitte Entities and the Library and its affiliates, or 
persons in financial reporting oversight roles at the Library and its affiliates, that, in our professional 
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence, that have occurred from March 29, 2018 to 
March 27, 2019.  

The total fees charged to the Library for audit services were $42,479 (2017, $41,516) and $8,560 (2017, 
$nil) for the adoption of new accounting standards during the period covered by the financial statements. 
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We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Library in accordance with the Rules of 
Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Alberta as of March 27, 2019. 

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit and Finance Committee, the Board of 
Directors, management and others within the Library and is not intended to be and should not be used for 
any other purposes. 

Yours truly, 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
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Appendix 4 – Draft management 
representation letter 

[Calgary Public Library letterhead] 

March 27, 2019 

Deloitte LLP 
700, 850 – 2 Street SW 
Calgary, AB T2P 0R8 

Dear Sirs: 

Subject: Financial statements of The Calgary Public Library Board. (the “Library”) for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit by Deloitte LLP (“Deloitte” or “you”) of the 
financial statements of The Calgary Public Library Board ( the “Library” or “we” or “us”) for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (the 
“Financial Statements”) for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Financial Statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the 
Library in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”). 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities as set out in the terms of the engagement letter between the Library
and Deloitte dated October 16, 2018 for the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with
PSAS. In particular, the Financial Statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and present
the financial position of the Library as at December 31, 2018 and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with PSAS.  Significant assumptions used in making
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. In preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS, management makes judgments and
assumptions about the future and uses estimates. The completeness and appropriateness of the
disclosures related to estimates are in accordance with PSAS. The Library has appropriately disclosed in
the Financial Statements the nature of measurement uncertainties that are material, including all
estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of
the change could be material to the Financial Statements.
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3. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the 
estimates, including fair value, were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with 
PSAS and appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on 
behalf of the entity. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2018 that require adjustment 
to the estimates and disclosures included in the Financial Statements. 

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current year. 
4. The Library has identified all related parties in accordance with Section PS 2200, Related Party 

Disclosures (“PS 2200”). Management has made the appropriate disclosures with respect to its related 
party transactions in accordance with PS 2200. This assessment is based on all relevant factors, including 
those listed in paragraph 16 of PS 2200. 

5. We have determined that the Financial Statements are complete as of the date of this letter as this is the 
date when there are no changes to the Financial Statements (including disclosures) planned or expected. 
The Financial Statements have been approved in accordance with our process to finalize financial 
statements.  
 

6. We have completed our review of events after December 31, 2018 and up to the date of this letter. All 
events subsequent to the date of the Financial Statements and for which PSAS requires adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. Accounting estimates and disclosures included in the 
Financial Statements that are impacted by subsequent events have been appropriately adjusted. 
 

7. The Financial Statements are free of material errors and omissions.  

Internal Controls 
8. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to 

prevent and detect fraud and error.  

9. We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting identified as part of our evaluation, including separately disclosing to you all such 
deficiencies that we believe to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. 

Information provided 
10. We have provided you with: 

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the Financial 
Statements, such as records, documentation and other matters.  

b. All relevant information as well as additional information that you have requested from us for the 
purpose of the audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 

11. All transactions have been properly recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Financial 
Statements. 

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud.  

13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and 
that affects the entity and involves: 
a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
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c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

14. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, 
or illegal or suspected illegal acts affecting the Library. 

15. We have disclosed to you all communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with 
or deficiencies in financial reporting practices and all known instances of non-compliance or suspected 
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
Financial Statements. 

16. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships 
and transactions of which we are aware, including guarantees, non-monetary transactions and 
transactions for no consideration and participation in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between 
group entities. 

17. We have disclosed to you all known, actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have 
been discussed with our lawyers, whose effects should be considered when preparing the Financial 
Statements. As appropriate, these items have been disclosed and accounted for in the Financial 
Statements in accordance with PSAS. 

Independence matters 
For purposes of the following paragraphs, “Deloitte” shall mean Deloitte LLP and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 
Limited, including related member firms and affiliates.  

18. Prior to the Library having any substantive employment conversations with a former or current Deloitte 
engagement team member, the Library has held discussions with Deloitte and obtained approval from 
the Audit and Finance Committee. 

19. We have ensured that all non-audit services provided to the Library have been pre-approved by the Audit 
and Finance Committee. Further, we have adhered to all regulatory requirements regarding the provision 
of non-audit services by Deloitte to the Library in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and rules 
that apply to the Library, including the Audit and Finance Committee approval requirements. 

20. We have ensured that all services performed by Deloitte with respect to this engagement have been pre-
approved by the Audit and Finance Committee in accordance with its established approval policies and 
procedures. 

Other matters 
21. The Library has satisfactory title to and control over all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 

on such assets. We have disclosed to you and in the Financial Statements all assets that have been 
pledged as collateral. 

22. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, including 
those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, and they are appropriately reflected in the 
Financial Statements. 

23. We have disclosed to you, and the Library has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that 
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements in the event of non-compliance, including all 
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt. 
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24. We have disclosed to you all the documents that we expect to issue that may comprise other
information, in the context of CAS 720, The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other Information in
Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements.

Fair Value 
25. With regard to the fair value measurements and disclosures of certain assets and liabilities, we believe

that:
a. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures related to fair values are in accordance with Public

Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”).

b. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2018 that require adjustment to the fair value
measurements and disclosures included in the Financial Statements.

c. They appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on
behalf of the Library when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures.

Management’s responsibilities 
26. All transactions and events have been carried out in accordance with law, regulation or other authority.

Accounting policies 
27. The accounting policies selected and application of those policies are appropriate.

28. The Library’s accounting policies and their method of application have been applied on a basis consistent
with that of the audited Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, except as
described in Note 1 of the financial statements.

Loans and receivables 
29. The Library is responsible for determining the appropriate carrying amount of notes, loans, and accounts

receivable, as well as estimates used to determine such amounts. Management believes that the carrying
amounts recorded and disclosed are appropriate.

30. We have identified to you all forgivable loans and loans with concessionary terms and have appropriately
reflected these instruments in the financial statements.

Employee future benefits 
31. Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations, as applicable, have been properly recorded and

adequately disclosed in the Financial Statements including those arising under defined benefit and
defined contribution plans as well as termination arrangements. We believe that the actuarial
assumptions and methods used to measure defined benefit plan assets, obligations and costs for financial
statement purposes are appropriate in the circumstances. Actuarial gains or losses have been amortized
to the liability and the related expense in a systematic and rational manner over the expected average
remaining service life of the related employee group.

32. We have disclosed to you any intentions of terminating any of our pension plans or withdrawing from the
multi-employer plan that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the plans.
We have disclosed to you any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of our pension or
multi-employer plans to which we contribute.

33. We are unable to determine the possibility of a withdrawal liability in a multi-employer benefit plan.



The Calgary Public Library Board | Appendix 4 – Draft management representation letter 

17 © Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities
 

Government transfers 
34. We have disclosed to you all correspondence relating to government transfers that the Library has had

with the funding body.

35. We have assessed the eligibility criteria and determined that the Library is an eligible recipient for the
government transfers received.

36. We have assessed the stipulations attached with the funding and have recognized the revenue in
accordance with meeting the stipulations required.

37. All government transfers that have been recorded as deferred revenue give rise to an obligation that
meets the definition of a liability. Those liabilities have been properly recorded and presented in the
Financial Statements.

Receivables 
38. The Library is responsible for determining the appropriate carrying amount of accounts receivable, as

well as estimates used to determine such amounts. Management believes that the carrying amounts
recorded and disclosed are appropriate.

City of Calgary Capital Asset Policy 
39. The Library was aware of the City of Calgary’s change in Capital Asset Policy for Vehicles for the year

ended December 31, 2018. Management has reviewed and understands the policy and has determined
that this policy change does not impact the Library’s financial statements.

Tangible capital assets 
40. Tangible capital assets have been recorded properly and consistently according to the standards in CPA

Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section PS 3150, Tangible Capital Assets.

41. Contributed tangible capital assets have been appropriately recorded at fair value, unless fair value is not
reasonably determinable, and in such case, have been recorded at an appropriate nominal value. All
contributed tangible capital assets have been appropriately disclosed.

42. We have assessed the useful lives of tangible capital assets and have determined all tangible capital
assets contribute to the Library’s ability to provide goods and services and therefore do not require a
write down.

Adjusting journal entries 
43. We have reviewed the year-end adjusting entries and acknowledge our responsibility for their accuracy.

Communicating a threshold amount 
44. We understand that the threshold used for accumulating misstatements identified during the year was

$100,000 for purposes of Appendix A. Misstatements below this amount have been considered clearly
trivial.

Section 3260, Liability for contaminated sites 
45. The Library was required to adopt Section 3260, Liability for contaminated sites effective for fiscal 2015

for the purposes of the public sector accounting standards (“PSAS”). Management has determined the
impact of this standard on the year-end financial statements, and based on management’s assessment,
there is no impact on the adjustments for the December 31, 2018 PSAS financial statements of this
standard.
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Adoption of new accounting standards 
46. The Library has adopted CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section 3210 Assets, PS 3320

Contingent Assets, PS 3380 Contractual Rights, PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures and PS 3420 Inter-
Entity Transactions, as of January 1, 2018 as discussed in Note 2 of the financial statements.

Contingent assets 
47. The Library has identified all contingent assets in accordance with CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting

Handbook Section PS 3320, Contingent Assets and, when the occurrence of the confirming future event
is considered likely, appropriately disclosed these items in the financial statements.

Contractual rights 
48. The Library has identified and disclosed all contractual rights, as discussed in Note 9 of the financial

statements, that will result in both an asset and revenue in the future, once the terms of the contract or
agreement are met, in accordance with CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section PS 3380,
Contractual Rights.

Inter-entity transactions 
49. The Library has recognized all transactions involving the transfer of assets or liabilities between public

sector entities in accordance with CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section PS 3420,
Inter-entity transactions (“PS 3420”).

50. The Library has recorded all inter-entity transactions properly at exchange or carrying amount in
accordance with the criteria in Section PS 3420.14-.22.

51. The Library has disclosed all inter-entity transactions in the notes to the Financial Statements whether or
not such transactions are recognized in the financial statements, in accordance with CPA Canada Public
Sector Accounting Handbook Section PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures, as shown in Note 12 of the
financial statements.

Assets 
52. The Organization has recognized all assets, which do not fall within the scope of other standards, only

when the requirements in CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section PS 3210, Assets
(“Section PS 3210”) have been met. For those assets which do not meet the recognition criteria in
Section PS 3210, the Organization has appropriately disclosed details of such unrecognized assets in
accordance with Section PS 3210. There was no impact on the Library’s financial statements upon
adoption of PS 3210 Assets.

Yours truly, 

The Calgary Public Library Board 

Ms. Elrose Klause, Controller and Director Financial Services 

Mr. Bill Ptacek, CEO 
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Appendix A 
The Calgary Public Library Board  
Summary of uncorrected financial statement misstatements 
Year ended December 31, 2018 

No uncorrected misstatements identified.
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Appendix B 
The Calgary Public Library Board 
Summary of disclosure items passed 
Year ended December 31, 2018 

 

No disclosure deficiencies identified. 
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Draft Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of  
The Calgary Public Library Board 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Calgary Public Library Board (the “Library”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, cash flows, and change 
in net financial liabilities for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Library 
as at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations, its cash flows and change in its net financial liabilities for the year 
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards (“PSAS”). 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“Canadian GAAS”). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Library in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with PSAS, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Library’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Library or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Library’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control.

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Library’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Library to cease to continue as a going concern.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 (To be signed Deloitte LLP)  

Chartered Professional Accountants 

•, 2019 

Calgary, Alberta 
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2018

2018 2017
$ $

FINANCIAL ASSETS
   Cash 4,330,411          3,373,198
   Accounts receivable (Note 3) 1,619,302 1,813,133

5,949,713 5,186,331

LIABILITIES
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4) 5,588,976 4,893,644
   Deferred revenues and tenant deposits(Note 5) 783,271 349,771

6,372,247 5,243,415

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (422,534)           (57,084)         

NON-FINANANCIAL ASSETS
   Tangible capital assets (Note 6, Schedule 1) 52,151,488 53,343,492
   Inventory 47,170 36,095
   Prepaid assets (Note 7) 1,568,943 2,020,845
   Deposits 17,000 17,000          

53,784,601 55,417,432

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 8) 53,362,067 55,360,348

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

On behalf of the Board

Member

Member

DRAFT
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
As at December 31, 2018

Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $

REVENUES

City of Calgary (Schedule 2) 51,374,720    51,935,423        47,263,020   
Province of Alberta (Schedule 2) 6,864,917      6,916,513          6,867,587     
Federal Government (Schedule 2) 187,062         189,057             204,638        
Fines 1,081,625      1,034,818          1,105,944     
Investment and other revenue 601,287         735,001             663,035        
Grants and sponsorships (Note 14) 2,194,825      3,041,992          3,000,952     

62,304,436    63,852,804        59,105,176   

EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 39,234,459    38,896,621        38,020,325   
Collections 4,336,500      4,267,244          4,080,890     
Building and equipment 7,073,631      6,644,353          7,073,631     
General operating 8,895,706      8,867,784          7,042,800     
Amortization 6,900,000      6,847,260          6,905,471     
Occupancy costs 1,248,782      1,338,140          1,094,562     

67,689,078    66,861,402        64,217,679   

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES - BEFORE OTHER (5,384,642)     (3,008,598)        (5,112,503)    

OTHER
Write off of tangible capital assets (Note 6) - (3,150,430) - 
Government transfers for capital (Schedule 2) 3,023,000      4,160,747 5,174,879     

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (2,361,642)     (1,998,281)        62,376          

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, beginning of year 55,360,348        55,297,972   

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, end of year 53,362,067        55,360,348   

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

DRAFT
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Cash Flows
As at December 31, 2018

2018 2017
$ $

OPERATING
   (Deficiency) Excess of revenues over expenses (1,998,281)        62,376          
   Non-cash charges to operations

Amortization 6,847,260          6,905,471     
Write off of tangible capital assets 3,150,430          - 
Adjustments of tangible capital assets - 6,534 
Change in non-cash working capital (Note 11) 1,763,490          1,681,193 

   Cash provided by operating transactions 9,762,899          8,655,574     

CAPITAL
   Acquisition of tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) (8,805,686)        (6,882,566)    

   Cash used in capital transactions (8,805,686)        (6,882,566)    

INCREASE IN CASH 957,213             1,773,008     

CASH, beginning of year 3,373,198          1,600,190     

CASH, end of year 4,330,411          3,373,198     DRAFT
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Statement of Change in Net Financial Liabilities
As at December 31, 2018

2018 2017
$ $

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (1,998,281)        62,376          

Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,847,260          6,905,471     
Change in inventory, prepaid assets and deposits 440,827             358,735        
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) (8,805,686)        (6,882,566)    
Write off of tangible capital assets 3,150,430          - 
Adjustments of tangible capital assets - 6,534

INCREASE IN NET FINANCIAL (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (365,450)           450,550        

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, beginning of year (57,084)             (507,634)       

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, end of year (422,534)           (57,084)         

DRAFT
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets
Schedule 1
As at December 31, 2018

 Materials  Building  IT Equipment  Furniture and 
Equipment  Work In Progress  Vehicles  2018

$ 
 2017

$ 

COST:

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 35,672,150          51,420,696          5,924,805            3,817,322            1,947,141            1,371,514            100,153,628            98,953,312              

Acquisition of tangible capital assets 4,351,337            250,014               45,485                 569,117               3,285,940            303,793               8,805,686                6,882,566                

Asset transfers -                       3,927,551            -                       -                       (3,927,551)           -                       -                          -                   

Disposal of tangible capital assets (3,992,718)           (9,896,325)           (587,974)              (721,550)              -                       (23,279)                (15,221,846)            (5,675,716)              

Adjustments of tangible capital assets -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                          (6,534)                     

BALANCE, END OF YEAR 36,030,769          45,701,936          5,382,316            3,664,889            1,305,530            1,652,028            93,737,468              100,153,628            

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION:

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,266,429          23,200,117          3,228,145            1,505,623            -                609,822               46,810,136              45,580,381              

Annual amortization 3,585,146            2,125,442            775,151               195,136               -                       166,385               6,847,260                6,905,471                

Asset transfers -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                          -                   

Accumulated amortization on disposals (3,992,718)           (7,219,507)           (575,503)              (261,379)              -                       (22,309)                (12,071,416)            * (5,675,716)              

BALANCE, END OF YEAR 17,858,857          18,106,052          3,427,793            1,439,380            -                753,898               41,585,980              46,810,136              

 NET BOOK VALUE OF 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 18,171,912          27,595,884          1,954,523            2,225,509            1,305,530            898,130               52,151,488              53,343,492              

`

 2017 NET BOOK VALUE OF
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 17,405,721          28,220,579          2,696,660            2,311,699            1,947,141            761,692               53,343,492              

* At the end of the life assumed all assets were disposed.

DRAFT
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THE CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD
Schedule of Government Transfers
Schedule 2
As at December 31, 2018

Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $

Transfers for operating:
    City of Calgary 51,374,720    51,874,814        47,233,447   
    City of Calgary Insurance Proceeds - 60,609 29,573          
    Provincial Government 6,864,917      6,916,513 6,867,587     
    Federal Government (Note 1) 187,062         189,057             204,638        

58,426,699    59,040,993        54,335,245   

Transfers for capital:
    City of Calgary 3,023,000      4,160,747          5,174,879     

3,023,000      4,160,747          5,174,879     

Total Government Transfers 61,449,699    63,201,740        59,510,124   

DRAFT
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The Calgary Public Library Board (the “Library”) is constituted under the Libraries Act of the Province of Alberta. It operates a system of nineteen 
community libraries and the Central Library in The City of Calgary (The City). 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”). The
Library’s significant accounting policies are:

Basis of Accounting

i) The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

ii) Revenues are accounted for in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues are reliably
measured and reasonably estimated.

iii) Donated materials and services are recognized at fair value when a fair value can be reasonably estimated and when the materials
and services are used in the normal course of the organization's operations and would otherwise have been purchased.

iv) A substantial number of volunteers have made significant contributions of their time to the Library's program and supporting services.
The value of this contributed time is not reflected in these financial statements.

v) Insurance proceeds are recognized when received.

vi) Government transfers, contributions and other amounts are received from third parties pursuant to legislation, regulation or
agreement and may only be used for certain programs, in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital
assets.  These funds are accounted for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified.  Revenue is recognized in the
period when the related expenses are incurred and any eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable estimate of the amounts
can be made.

vii) Expenses are recognized in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.
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Financial Instruments 

The Library’s financial instruments, which include cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximate their fair 
values due to their short-term nature.  At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the Library had no outstanding debt. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during the reporting period.  Where measurement uncertainty exists, the financial statements 
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Significant estimates include 
the estimates of useful lives and potential impairment of tangible capital assets, and accrued liabilities. 

Non-Financial Assets 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of services.  They have useful 
lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the normal course of operations.  The change in non-financial assets 
during the year, together with the deficiency of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net financial assets for the year. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue represents amounts received from third parties for a specified operating purpose.  These amounts include sponsorships, 
which are restricted until used for the purpose intended.  Deferred revenues are recognized as revenue in the period when the related 
expenses are incurred to reflect the completion of the Library’s performance obligations. 
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New Accounting Standards In Effect 

The Library has adopted the following standards with an effective date of January 1, 2018: PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures, PS 3210 
Assets, PS 3320 Contingent Assets, PS 3380 Contractual Rights, PS 3420 Inter-entity Transactions.  The adoption of the new standards 
resulted in additional note disclosures in the financial statements.  

PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures, a new standard defining related parties and establishing guidance on disclosure requirements for 
related party transactions (see note 12). 

PS 3210 Assets, a new standard providing guidance for applying the definition of assets and establishing disclosure requirements for 
assets.  The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the financial statements.  

PS 3320 Contingent Assets, a new standard defining and establishing guidance on disclosure requirements for contingent assets.  The 
adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the financial statements. 

PS 3380 Contractual Rights, a new standard defining and establishing guidance on disclosure requirements for contractual rights (see 
note 9). 

PS 3420 Inter-Entity Transactions, a new standard defining and establishing guidance on the accounting and disclosure requirements for 
inter-entity transactions. The Library does not have any unallocated or nominal value inter-entity transactions as such this this standard did 
not have a material impact on the financial statements.  All inter-entity transactions have been disclosed in accordance with the guidance 
established in PS 2200 (see note 12). 

Future Accounting Pronouncements 

The following new accounting standards were issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB).  The Library continues to assess the 
impacts of the standards.  

Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2018 

PS 3430 - Restructuring Transactions establishes how to record assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses related to restructuring 
transactions as well as disclosure requirements for the recipient and transferor. 
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Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2021. 
 
PS 3250 Asset Retirement Obligations provides guidance on how to account for and report liabilities for retirement of tangible capital 
assets. 

 
Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022. 
 
Section PS 3400, Revenue which provides guidance on the recognition of revenue that distinguishes between revenue that arises from 
transactions that include performance obligations and from transactions that do not have performance obligations.  
 

 
 

Accumulated Surplus/Deficit 
 

Accumulated surplus/deficit represents the Library’s net economic resources.  It is an amount by which all assets (financial and non-financial) 
exceed liabilities.  An accumulated surplus indicates that the Library has net resources (financial and physical) that can be used to provide 
future services.  An accumulated deficit means that liabilities are greater than assets. 
 
The accumulated surplus includes restricted funds which have been designated for the replacement and upgrade of the Library’s automated 
systems, facility refurbishment and major renovations, and the construction of new facilities.  Note 8 provides a listing of all restricted and 
unrestricted amounts that form the accumulated surplus. 
 

Tangible Capital Assets 

 
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, 
development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful life as follows:  
 

Major Category Years 
Materials 10 
Buildings  
  Buildings 10 - 75 
  Leasehold improvements 5 - 25 
Furniture and Equipment 5 - 25 
IT Equipment 5 - 10 
Vehicles 7 - 10 
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The Library does not hold title to any of the buildings that are included in the schedule of capital assets.  Legal title of these buildings is held 
with The City.  The Library is the steward of the assets and has control over these assets.  As such the value of these assets is recorded in 
these financial statements in the Library’s role as steward, but not as title owner.   

Work in progress represents assets which are not available for use and therefore are not subject to amortization. 

Tangible capital assets are written down when there is permanent and measurable impairment in its tangible capital asset value and the 
tangible capital asset still exists.  

Cultural and Historical Tangible Capital Assets 

The local history collection is not recorded as a tangible capital asset but is disclosed (Note 6). 

Inventory 

Supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and net replacement value. 

Prepaid assets 

Subscriptions, software annual maintenance contracts, and occupancy are recorded as prepaid assets and are recognized as an expense 
over the corresponding period of the service provided (Note 7).   

Leases 

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases.  Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership 
of property are accounted for as capital leases.  All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are 
charged to expenses as incurred.  The Library did not have capital leases during the reporting period. 

2. CREDIT FACILITY

The Library has an unsecured revolving credit facility to a maximum of $4,500,000.  The interest rate on the facility fluctuates with the Royal
Bank’s prime rate per annum.  The purpose of the credit facility is to ensure cash flow timing does not affect normal Library operations.  It is
not intended to be used as debt to fund additional Library operations.  At December 31, 2018, the balance of the facility was $nil (2017 –
$nil).
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

Accounts receivable is comprised of the following:       
 
 
                                                                                                                                                    

2018 2017
$ $

City of Calgary-  Life Cycle Recovery 730,367                               1,435,509                      
Calgary Municipal Land Corporation 458,948                               29,804                            
GST recovery 324,801                               255,258                          
Other 105,186                               92,562                            

Total 1,619,302                           1,813,133                      

                 
 
4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are comprised of the following: 
                                                                                                                                                          

2018 2017
$ $

Accounts payable - Items invoiced not paid/goods received not 
invoiced 1,547,522                     1,475,679                     

Salary and non-salary accruals 2,206,834                     1,598,655                     
Employee vacation pay accrual 1,135,539                     1,112,264                     
Benefit & salary deduction payables, net 699,081                        707,046                        

Total 5,588,976                     4,893,644                            
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5. DEFERRED REVENUES AND TENANT DEPOSITS 
 

Deferred revenues are comprised of the funds noted below, the use of which are externally restricted.  These funds are recognized as 
revenue in the period they are used for the purpose specified. 
 
 

December 31, 2017
$

Inflows
$

Revenue Earned
$

December 31 ,2018
$

Program & Project agreements 326,000                       784,650                  (351,000)                 759,650                       
Tenant deposit 23,771                          15                            (165)                         23,621                          

Ending balance 349,771                       784,665                  (351,165)                 783,271                        
 
 
 
6.  TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Schedule 1) 
             

Category (Net Book Value) 2018 2017
$ $

Materials 18,171,912                 17,405,721                 
Buildings 27,595,884                 28,220,579                 
IT equipment 1,954,523                   2,696,660                   
Furniture and equipment 2,225,509                   2,311,699                   
Work in progress 1,305,530                   1,947,141                   
Vehicles 898,130                       761,692                       

Total 52,151,488                 53,343,492                 

 
 
The Calgary Public Library maintains a local history collection that is on permanent display on the fourth floor of the Central Library.  The 
collection is not recorded as a tangible capital asset in the financial statements and is not amortized. 
 
In 2018, the Library transferred the old Central Library building to The City.  The Library wrote off $3,150,434 remaining net book value from 
the old Central Library. 
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7.  PREPAID ASSETS 
 
Prepaid assets are comprised of the following:   
 

2018 2017
$ $

Occupancy 73,186                         51,052                         
Software annual maintenance contracts 755,255                       1,115,846                    
Subscriptions 715,719                       605,525                       
New Central Library Play Space -                                200,000                       
General 24,783                         48,422                         

Total 1,568,943                    2,020,845                     
 
 
 

8. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
 
 Accumulated surplus consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in tangible capital assets as follows: 
     

2018 2017
$ $

Unrestricted surplus 807,226                          386,230                     
Restricted surplus 403,353                          1,630,626                  
Equity in tangible capital assets 52,151,488                     53,343,492                

Total 53,362,067                     55,360,348                
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Equity in tangible capital assets consists of the following items: 
               

2018 2017
$ $

Tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) 93,737,468            100,153,628          
Accumulated amortization (Schedule 1) (41,585,980)           (46,810,136)           

Total 52,151,488            53,343,492            

 
 
 
9. CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS 
 

Contractual rights are rights of the Library to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in both assets and 
revenues in the future when the terms of those contracts or agreements are met. The Library currently holds an Immigrant Settlement 
Services agreement with The Federal Government of Canada. The Library will receive payments for claims when eligible costs are 
incurred. Also included in the contractual rights is the rent revenue for the retail space at the Central Library.   
 

 Estimated amounts that will be received or receivable for each of the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 
 
 

 

Year Retail Space Rent Immgrant Settlement 
Services

$ $
2019 110,313                                        148,189                              
2020 110,313                                        34,542                                
2021 110,313                                        -                                     
2022 110,313                                        -                                     

Thereafter through to 2027 82,735                                           -                                     

Total 523,987 182,731  
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10. COMMITMENTS 
 
 Minimum lease payments for Library locations and equipment under operating leases in future years are as follows: 
     

                     

Year                                      $
2019 987,000                                                       
2020 909,000                                                       
2021 880,000                                                       
2022 827,000                                                       
2023 664,000                                                       

Thereafter through to 2028 2,176,000                                                   

Total 6,443,000  
 

The Library is committed to an electricity fixed price contract to June 30, 2021 and a natural gas fix price contract to August 31, 2021.  The 
Library has also entered a fixed price thermal energy services agreement for the new Central Library until August 31, 2037.  Capital 
commitments for major capital projects amount to $841,911 at December 31, 2018 ($1,174,191 at December 31, 2017).  Operating 
commitments amount to $885,981 at December 31, 2017 ($345,686 at December 31, 2017).   
 
 

11. CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL 
 

The change in non-cash working capital consists of the following items: 
 

            

2018 2017 Change                           
$ $ $

Accounts receivable 1,619,302                    1,813,133                    193,831                        
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,588,976                    4,893,644                    695,332                        
Deferred revenues 783,271                        349,771                        433,500                        
Inventory 47,170                          36,095                          (11,075)                         
Prepaid assets 1,568,943                    2,020,845                    451,902                        
Deposits 17,000                          17,000                          -                                 

Change in non-cash working capital 1,763,490                     
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

i) Related part transactions include transactions with entities outside the reporting entity where a member of the Library’s key 

management personnel, or their spouse or dependent, is key management personnel of the counterparty to a transaction with the 
Library.  As key management personnel, they govern or share the power to the ongoing financial and operating decisions of that 
counterparty. 

Key management personnel of the Library are those individuals having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Library.  The Library has controls in place to ensure that the key management personnel do not 
enter into transactions with related parties.  For 2018 there were no material transactions between related parties which occurred 
at a value different from that which would have been arrived at if the parties were unrelated. 

 
ii) The Library conducts transactions with The City of Calgary in the normal course of business: Accounts receivable from The City at 

December 31, 2018 is $730,367 (2017 - $1,444,246).  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $155,708 (2017 - $72,937) 
 

iii) During 2018, the Library recovered the new Central Library expenses in the amount of $1,265,829 (2017 - $nil) from CMLC.  The 
CMLC also reimbursed $72,756 (2017 - $nil) the new Central Library opening related costs to the Library, which is included in grants 
and sponsorships and the expense of the same amount is included in general operating.  The Library paid $461,448 (2017 - $nil) to 
the CMLC for a play structure at the new Central Library, which is considered a furniture addition.  The Library also paid $65,600 
(2017 - $nil) for building and maintenance expenses to the CMLC.  As at December 31, 2018 accounts receivable included $458,948 
(2017 - $29,804) due from CMCL, and accounts payable included $11,600 (2017 - $200,000) due to CMLC. 

 
iv) Effective October 1, 2016, the Library signed a lease agreement with the Calgary Municipal Land Corporation (CMLC) for the use 

of the Hillier Block Building.  CMLC donated the value of the lease as an in-kind donation to the Library.  The fair market value of 
the in-kind donation is $102,000 (2017 - $102,000) included in grants and sponsorships and the expense of the same amount is 
included in occupancy. Included in deposits at December 31, 2018 is the damage deposit of $17,000 (carried over from 2017) for 
the Hillier Block Building. 

 
v) The City of Calgary provides space to the Library under many occupancy models.  During 2016 a new arrangement for managing 

multi use facilities constructed by The City of Calgary came into existence.  The Library will be included in many of these new 
complexes.  Prior to occupancy, The City of Calgary (The Landlord) enters into a leasing agreement with a third party (Lessee) to 
manage and operate the entire facility.  The Lessee then enters into a separate sublease, as the Sublandlord, with each of the 
occupants.  The sublease contains many of the obligations of the original lease.  One of these conditions is the establishment of an 
asset management reserve fund to be held and used by the Sublandlord to meet common area systems life cycle maintenance 
needs as they arise.  As the reserve is depleted each tenant will be required to replenish the fund, using the formula of the original 
contribution.  The Library (Sublessee) expenses the amount (as building and equipment expense) in the year of payment because 
the sublease stipulates that any remaining funds at the expiry date or the earlier termination of the sublease will be the property of 
The City of Calgary.  However, the funds will remain intact for many years until life cycle needs start and the actual building expense 
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is incurred. The following table describes the amounts that were contributed by the Library (as Sublessee) to the asset management 
reserve fund and the balance being held in the fund at the end of the year. 

 

Location Sublandlord
Sublease 

Commencing 
Year

Sublease 
Term 

(Years)

Opening 
Balance 

January 1, 
2018

Amount 
Contributed

Amount 
Withdrawn

Balance 
Remaining 

December 31, 
2018

$ $ $

Quarry Park 
Recreation 

Facility
YMCA 2016 25                  96,200            -                          -                         96,200                

 
 
 
These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount, which represents the amount agreed to by both parties. 
 
During 2018 The City of Calgary (The Landlord) entered into an operating lease agreement with the Library (Lessee) to manage and operate 
the new Central Library.  The annual base rent is ten dollars plus GST for the first twenty-five years.  There is an option for an extension of 
term of fifty years under the same conditions.  All operating costs are the sole responsibility of the Library.   

 
 
13. LOCAL AUTHORITIES PENSION PLAN 
 

The Library participates in the Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP). This pension plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan 
that provides pensions for the Library’s participating employees, based on years of service and earnings. 
 
The pension expense recorded in these financial statements as salaries and employee benefits expense represents the Library’s annual 
contributions of $2,081,392 in 2018 (2017 - $2,332,052). All full-time staff employed by the Library are members of the LAPP after a 
qualification period.  
 
The LAPP is currently in a surplus position of $4.84 billion in 2017, an increase from a deficit position of $(0.6) billion in 2016.  The surplus 
applies to the entire plan and the Library’s portion of the surplus cannot be determined.  The 2017 information is provided as the most recent 
information was not available at the time of preparing the financial statements. 
 
LAPP consists of over 259,714 active members.  The City of Calgary’s active plan membership represents approximately 5.3% of which the 
Library portion is approximately 0.1% as at December 31, 2018. 
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14. CALGARY PUBLIC LIBRARY FOUNDATION

The Calgary Public Library Foundation (the “Foundation”) financial statements are not consolidated with the Library as the Foundation is an
unrelated independent organization. The Foundation was established in 1999, and operationalized in 2000. It is a stand-alone charity
registered with the federal and provincial governments. The purpose of the Foundation is:

• To raise funds for the Library, a registered charity; and
• To assist the Library in providing the highest possible level and quality of service to the customers of the Library.

During fiscal 2018, the Foundation donated $3,300,886 (2017 - $3,212,588) to the Library, of which $759,650 is included in deferred 
revenues, and $2,541,236 is included in grants and sponsorships revenue. The amount also includes an in-kind donation of $233,859 (2017 
- $253,023), relating to arts and culture passes.  The related expense is recorded in general operating expenses.  At December 31, 2018,
the Library contributed $500,000 (2017 - $500,000) to the Foundation. This is included in the Library’s financial statements in general
operating expenses.  The Library will commit $400,000 to the Foundation in 2019.  The Library also contributed an in-kind donation of
$166,403 (2017 - $195,076) to the Foundation relating to occupancy costs, building and equipment, and general operating expenses for the
Hillier Block Building.
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Report to the Calgary Public Library 

Audit and Finance Committee 
2019 March 19 

 
Annual City Allocation for Life Cycle Asset Management Updates 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report to the Audit and Finance Committee is to recommend that the $225,000 
allocated by The City of Calgary annually as part of the Base Operating Grant be restricted to fund the 
regular update of the Asset Management Plan, which is the basis for The City to continue funding capital 
Lifecycle replacements. As this amount is included in the operating budget the deferred use of these funds 
will require Board approval.  

 
2. PREVIOUS DIRECTION / POLICY 
 
The Audit and Finance Committee mandate includes items relating to budget (prior to Board approval). 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
Prior to the 2012–2014 budget cycle, The City of Calgary assisted the Library with the creation of an Asset 
Management Plan. Based on the business plans that used the Asset Management Plan data to substantiate 
the need for life cycle funding, The City of Calgary approved $11.6 million to fund Library life cycle capital 
needs. This funding was restricted to buildings. 

Additional, less restrictive, funding was approved by The City for the 2015–2018 capital budget cycle, providing 
the Library with $3.137 million annually through 2018. The Library has access to this funding for capital projects 
that are not tied to buildings and their life cycle. These funds can be used to grow the fleet, enhance wireless 
capability, automate additional services, and provide the infrastructure for new services tied to the Strategic 
Plan, as well as for additional building requirements in excess of the previous budget cycle’s carry forward 
amount. This funding continues in the 2019-2022 capital budget cycle where The City has allocated $11,170 
million over the current four year period. 

At the same time that The City created life cycle funding for the Library in the City’s capital budget, they 
stipulated that future continued capital funding would be based on updated Asset Management Plans that 
proved the timing and need for this ongoing source of funding. To assist in funding these updates the annual 
Base Operating Grant from The City to the Library includes an amount of $225,000.  

 
4. REVIEW AND UPDATE 
 
The last update to the Asset Management Plans was completed in 2018 and involved work by consultants to 
review our assets and update the planned maintenance/replacement schedules and estimated costs. We 
consider all funds previously provided by the City to have been fully allocated through this process. 
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Starting with the 2019 budget cycle we consider it prudent to restrict the use of these annual funds to the 
purpose stipulated by the City. The Library plans to update the Asset Management Plan in a regular cycle by 
using outside experts to independently make these assessment updates. As the plan is currently up to date it 
would be best practice to defer the use of the annual $225,000 allocation until the next updates begin to 
ensure these funds are available. The next Asset Management Plan updates will include the Central Library 
Building that opened in 2018. The size and complexity of the new building will place added costs to 
maintaining the plan. 
 
At the end of The City’s current budget cycle, or at a different date, an assessment can be made to calculate 
any surplus funds that could then be applied to unfunded needs, or to evaluate whether The City’s annual 
contribution for this purpose has been sufficient.  

 
5. RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
Future Life Cycle funding from The City is dependent on updated Asset Management information. Not ensuring 
funds are in place to update the Asset Management System would allow The City to allocate these capital 
funds elsewhere.  

 
6. ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
That the Calgary Public Library Board’s Audit & Finance Committee recommend that the Calgary Public Library 
approve the allocation of the $225,000 received annually from The City of Calgary to refresh the Asset 
Management Plan. These funds will then be drawn down as required to ensure that the Asset Management 
Plan is current and supports the continued life cycle funding currently allocated to the Library in The City’s 
Capital Budget. 

 
Elrose J Klause, CPA/CMA 
Controller & Director, Financial Services 

 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

 
none  
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Report to the  
Calgary Public Library Board 
Audit & Finance Committee 

March 19, 2019 
2019 Annual Risk Register Revision 

 

I. ALIGNMENT 
The risk register is a governance tool for the Board. It is not a legislated requirement or a strategic 
imperative. It is a requirement of the City of Calgary and a widely recognized governance best 
practice. 

 
II. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to provide an annual review of categories identified by the Calgary Public 
Library as presenting the greatest risk to the Library in meeting its strategic objectives. There will also 
be an opportunity for Library Administration and the Committee to discuss the validity of the risks that 
are reported and any emerging risks that have not been previously identified as significant.  

 
 

III. BACKGROUND 
The current approach to risk reporting has been in place since 2014 and is the result of an 
engagement with KPMG intended to ensure that Calgary Public Library’s risk reporting incorporated 
best practices in integrated risk management. 

The current approach reflects a focus on the strategic level, by assessing and presenting the 
greatest risk factors to attainment of the Library’s strategic goals. Over the last five years the 
Committee and Administration have refined the focus of risk reporting to the following five 
categories: 

• Relevance 
• Finance 
• Operations 
• New Central Library Project 
• Security 

Each category contains factors that have been analyzed to determine the risk to the Library if there 
were no mitigation controls in place, and what the risks are after mitigation controls are in place. 
This information is presented annually through a heat map showing the results of this analysis. The 
2018 heat map is attached to this report for reference. 

With the opening of the new Central Library and the adoption of a new strategic plan, Administration 
undertook a review of the risk register with the aim of updating categories and risk factors for the 
next several years.   
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IV. REVIEW AND UPDATE 

Categories 

With the successful opening of the new Central Library, and its inclusion in many other reporting 
tools, the need for that project to be a separate risk reporting category is reduced. The other four 
current categories remain strongly related to attainment of the Library’s strategic goals and are 
being retained. 

Risk Factors 

Within the remaining risk categories, the 18 risk factors were reviewed through several lenses, 
including: 

• Is this factor still related to strategic goals? 
• Is there still unmitigated risk in this factor? 
• Is there a less subjective way of defining and measuring the underlying risk?  
• Is there a material new factor in this category that has emerged since the prior review? 

As a result of this review, the Executive Leadership Team is recommending changes to the risk 
factors in all four categories. The changes are detailed in the tables below.  

 

R
EL

EV
A

N
C

E 

2018 Factor Assessment 2019 Definition 

1A. Members/capita Retain Members per capita 

1B. Customer 
Satisfaction 

Retain, and align with 
scorecard 

Percent of respondents 
reporting a certain satisfaction 
score 

1C. Community 
Partner Involvement 

Delete. Not strongly 
aligned with outcomes 

 

1D. Service 
Innovation 

Retain but redefine Number of new or materially 
modified programs and events 
introduced in the reporting 
period 

1E. Volunteer 
Availability 

Retain Percent of volunteer 
opportunities that were 
successfully filled in the 
reporting period  
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FI
N

A
N

C
E 

2018 Factor Assessment 2019 Definition 

2A. Fraud Retain Dollar value of fraud in the 
reporting period 

2B. Annual Funding Retain but make less 
subjective 

Per capita municipal grant 

2C. Allocation of 
Resources 

Replace with efficiency 
measure 

Operating cost per use 

2D. Planned 
Operating 
Expenditures 

Retain but make less 
subjective 

Operating fund year-end 
forecast  

2E. Planned Capital 
Expenditures 

Retain but make less 
subjective 

Annual change in tangible 
capital assets 

 

O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
S 

2018 Factor Assessment 2019 Definition 

3A. Building Visits Retain Percent change in visits from 
year earlier quarter  

3B. Website and 
Catalogue Visits 

Retain  Percent change in visits from 
year earlier quarter 

3C. Facility Availability Delete due to 
reassessment of level 
of risk 

 

3D. Relationships in 
Joint Use Facilities 

Delete due to 
reassessment of level 
of risk 

 

3E. Collection  Retain and redefine Circulation per capita 

3F. Staff Engagement Retain and align with 
scorecard 

TBD 
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SE

C
U

R
IT

Y 
2018 Factor Assessment 2019 Definition 

5A. Incidents at 
Community Libraries 

Retain Number of incidents per 10,000 
visits  

5B. Incidents at 
Central Library 

Retain  Number of incidents per 10,000 
visits 

 

Rating Scales 
The annual risk review includes an assessment of the likelihood and the impact of specific risk 
factors, which together comprise a matrix. Assessment of the likelihood and impact has been on a 
five-point scale, creating a 5 by 5 matrix.  

Likelihood currently uses the following scale: 

• Rare (Every 5 years) – 5 post-mitigation factors 
• Unlikely (Every 2 to 4 years) – 4 post-mitigation factors 
• Low (Every 2 years) – 1 post-mitigation factor 
• Medium (Annually) – 10 post-mitigation factors 
• High (More than 1 instance per year) – 1 post-mitigation factor 

As there is little data that supports this level of distinction for our factors at the low likelihood end of 
the scale, Administration recommends consolidating into three levels of likelihood:  

• Low – Less than every 2 years 
• Medium – Between 1 and 2 years 
• High – At least annually 

Impact currently uses the following scale: 

• Insignificant (No or minor impact) – 3 post-mitigation factors 
• Low (Not important to the Board) – 9 post-mitigation factors 
• Moderate (Report to the Board) – 8 post-mitigation factors 
• High (Very important to the Board) – 1 post-mitigation factors 
• Catastrophic (Threatens continuity) – 0 post-mitigation factors 

Again, Administration recommends consolidating to three levels of impact, as follows: 

• Low – Minor impact only 
• Medium – Possibility of operational failure 
• High – Possibility of strategic failure 
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The resultant 3 by 3 matrix would produce three colored zones, which would be used to 
characterize the individual risk factors in both their pre and post-mitigation states and create a 
method to triage results over the course of the year.   

 

The post-mitigation state, and more importantly, the actual reported value would be evaluated 
according to color, as in the table below: 

 Continue to Monitor 

 Review Management Controls 

 Review Strategic Goals 

 

Lastly, the regular presentation of results has been reformatted to include all information about a 
risk factor on a single page and allow for additional commentary to explain the current reading 
alongside the known information and the recent results. An example of this format is attached to 
this report. 

V. CONCLUSION 

The existing risk register garners favourble reviews among its stakeholders and reflects positively 
the risk management activities of Administration. This review was undertaken to ensure continued 
relevance of the risk factors identified, and to improve the communication of risk information with 
the intent of fostering an open and continuous dialogue around the attainment of strategic goals. 

This report recommends a modest number of changes to risk factors and a streamlined 
presentation of risk-related information and status. 

VI. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Audit and Finance Committee recommends this report, 2019 Annual Risk Review, to the 
Calgary Pubic Library Board. 

 

 Attachments: 1] 2018 Heat Map 
   2] Draft Risk Factor Dashboard 
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Draft Unapproved  
Minutes 

Strategy and Community Committee Meeting 
Calgary Public Library Board 

Central Library Boardroom 0-11 
Tuesday, March 12, 2019 

5.30 p.m.  

In Attendance: 
Board Administration 
Mr. Isaac Elias, Chair 
Ms. Janet Hutchinson 
Ms. Debra Giles 
Ms. Jocelyn Phu 
Mr. Rob Macaulay 

Mr. Bill Ptacek, CEO 
Ms. Mary Kapusta, Director, Communications 
Mr. Paul Lane, Director, Corporate Services 
Ms. Sarah Meilleur, Director, Service Delivery 
Mr. Mark Asberg, Director, Service Delivery 

Regrets: 
Mr. Avnish Mehta (ex officio) 

I. Meeting Opening

Mr. Elias respectfully acknowledged that we are gathered here today at a place called Moh’kinsstis, a 
Blackfoot word that means elbow. The word describes the landscape of what is now known as Calgary, 
an area where the Elbow River meets the Bow River.   

It is in the spirit of respect and truth that we honour and acknowledge Moh’kinsstis, and recognize the 
traditional territories and oral practices of the Blackfoot people, the Nakoda people of the Stoney Nation, 
the Beaver people of the Tsuut’ina Nation, and the Métis Nation of Alberta, Region Three. This Library is 
one of 21 libraries across our city built on this traditional land. Finally, we acknowledge all people who 
make their homes in the Treaty 7 territory of Southern Alberta. 

II. Review of Agenda

The Agenda was approved with no changes. 

III. Approval of Minutes

MOVED by Ms. Giles, that the Minutes of the February 12th, 2019 meeting be approved as presented. 
Carried Unanimously 
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IV. Business Arising and Review of Action Items 
 

Task Responsible Deadline 

Going forward the agendas for Strategy 
and Community committee meetings will 
identify the alignment with the Strategic 
Plan, in keeping with the renewed board 
focus. 

Administration April 9 2019 

 

V. Hours of Service Review 
 
Ms. Meilleur reported the statutory obligation of the Library to report changes to the Library hours of 
services to the Calgary Public Library Board. The changes are the addition of Sunday hours year-round 
at Louise Riley, Village Square, and the Central Library, resulting in 15 libraries that will be opened on 
Sundays in the summer months.  In addition, the Central Library is now open at 9:00am on Saturday 
mornings, and with the additional Seton Library hours it adds another 70 hours per week of service.   
 
Task Responsible Deadline 

Include the requirement of statutory 
obligation to the Board to workplan.  

Administration March 2020 

 
 
VI. NCL Lessons Learned  
 
Ms. Meilleur reported on the learnings gathered from both formal and informal ways, in four key areas: 
Project Management, Staff Readiness, Communication, and Building Construction/Infrastructure since 
opening day in November. There have been 670,000 visitors and 700,000 in membership systemwide. 
Project Management approaches within the different departments recognized a need for efficiency and 
communication across the library. The Service Design and Marketing & Communications department will 
create a holistic approach that will allow the library to work towards a consistent, transparent, project 
management process that will be more effective.  
 
The library has also encountered several challenges that includes events management resourcing, 
accessibility challenges, AV commissioning delay due to full bookings of the meeting rooms, and wear 
and tear on the building. Several changes are being implemented such as adding more resources to 
support event management demands, a coordinated team working to address issues relating to 
accessibility, blocking of times at least two months in advance to address AV issues, and adding 
additional resources to facilities to ensure adequate support is provided to monitor the wear and tear.  
 
The Library also continues to share lessons learned with other libraries around the world.   
 
 
VII. Board Retreat Review  
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The committee collectively agreed the objective of the retreat were met. They were pleased with the two 
topics, venue, food, speakers, and In-Camera session. Overall satisfaction was unanimous.  

VIII. Board Advocacy Plan Review

The Committee reviewed the Board Advocacy Priorities. Going forward all new Board members would 
receive a copy of the Advocacy plan to give them clarity of their positions.  

Task Responsible Deadline 

Amend the title “Celebrate the Growth of the 
Calgary Public Library to Celebrate the 
Initiatives of Calgary Public Library. 

Administration March 2020 

Insert a sub heading “Leading through the 
Strategic Plan” 

Administration March 2020 

Amend the Role titles to Connector Administration March 2019 

IX. Other Business

No other business 

X. Adjournment

MOVED by Mr. Macaulay that the meeting be adjourned at 7.07 pm. 

Transcribed by Dee Adekugbe 

Mr. Isaac Elias 
Chair 

Mr. Bill Ptacek 
CEO 
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Calgary Public Library Board 
Strategy & Community Committee 

March 12, 2019 
Increasing Hours of Service 

I. Purpose

For the Board’s review, Service Delivery is presenting the following, annual update on Calgary Public 
Library’s hours of service.  This annual report is a statutory obligation from the Libraries Act.   

II. Extended Service Hours

Increased use of Library meeting rooms, public access network, computers, printing services, and open 
space clearly points to a continually growing appetite for augmented hours of service. In response, the 
Library was pleased to report last year that it was extending regular hours in multiple locations, and with 
the additional of the self-serve location at Rocky Ridge, adding over 2,200 hours of service to the previous 
4,800 hours. In 2019, the Library is again proud to report that member service hours have been further 
extended by 3,917 hours over and above increases reported in 2017 and 2018.  

Changes to report this year include the addition of Sunday hours year round at Louise Riley, Village 
Square, and the Central Library, resulting in 15/21 libraries open Sundays in the summer months.  In 
addition the Central Library is now open at 9:00am on Saturday mornings, and the full complement of 
hours at our newly opened Seton Library adds another 70 hours per week of service.   

The new hours of service are outlined in Attachment 1 and will be fully in effect this summer. 

While regular hours of operation are the focus of this report, there are numerous other ways by which to 
measure the Library’s effectiveness at extending the availability of its services to Calgarians, including:  

• Providing twenty-four hours per day access to the Library website and the Library’s extensive
array of electronic resources

• Occasionally opening select libraries for special events or holidays (e.g. opening Memorial Park
on Remembrance Day, seven community libraries on Family Day, and Central Library on Canada
Day)

• Bringing hundreds of hours of Library service to community locations, schools and day homes
across the city through the expansion Book Truck service, including the addition of one new Story
Truck in 2018, which focuses on service to day homes

• Offering enhanced self-serve options in the Rocky Ridge Library all hours that the Shane Homes
YMCA is open
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III. Risk Management 
 

Risk Mitigation Risk 
Level 

Current budget will not 
support additional 
opening hours. 

We are deploying the current workforce and existing 
complement of hours in different ways to accommodate 
the extra hours of opening. New operational dollars 
support Sunday openings at the Central Library.  

Low 

Increased opening hours 
will not draw sufficient 
numbers of members to 
justify the expense. 

Effective data collection tools are in place to track 
member visits to all Library locations, ensuring the 
Library has the necessary information to adjust course 
as necessary. 

Low 

Staff members may not 
appreciate changes to 
their schedules. 

Managers work with individual team members to find 
solutions that work for the organization and team 
members.  

Low 

Members may not see the 
Library as being 
responsive enough to 
demands for increased 
hours of service or 
access.  

To meet members’ changing needs, the Library 
continues to explore and implement opportunities to 
provide services in different ways and at different times, 
including: ongoing evaluation of new and continuing 
hours, identification of opportunities for extended hours, 
and continuing investment in mobile libraries, virtual 
services and resources, and self-serve options.  

Low 

 
 
IV. Recommendation 
 
That the Strategy & Community Committee recommend that the Calgary Public Library Board receive 
this report, Increasing Hours of Service, for information. 
 
Sarah Meilleur 
Director, Service Delivery 
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Attachment 1 
 

Location Current Hours 
Future Hours 

(changes in bold) 

Approximate 
additional 

hours per year3 

Bowness Mon to Wed: 10 am - 8 pm 

Thu:  10 am - 5 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Central Mon to Thu: 9 am - 8 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

Mon to Thu: 9 am - 8 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

127 

Country Hills Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Crowfoot Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Fish Creek Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

                                                           
3 Using 2018 as the benchmark 
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Location Current Hours 
Future Hours 

(changes in bold) 

Approximate 
additional 

hours per year3 

Forest Lawn Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Giuffre Family 
Library  

Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Judith Umbach Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Louise Riley Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

75 

Memorial Park Mon to Thu: 10 am - 8 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 
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Location Current Hours 
Future Hours 

(changes in bold) 

Approximate 
additional 

hours per year3 

Nicholls Family Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Nose Hill Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Quarry Park Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Rocky Ridge4 Self-service hours of 
operation: 

 

Mon to Fri: 5:30 am - 10:30 pm 

Sat to Sun: 7 am - 8:30 pm 

 

Full service hours: 

At least 35 hours per week, 
scheduled with programming 
and to meet high demand 
times. 

 

 

                                                           
4 The Library is open all hours the Shane Homes YMCA is open, but we are only reporting service hours for times 
when we have team members on hand at the location. Team members are on site at least 35 hours a week at 
Rocky Ridge. 
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Location Current Hours 
Future Hours 

(changes in bold) 

Approximate 
additional 

hours per year3 

Saddletowne Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Sage Hill Mon to Thu: 10 am - 8 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Shawnessy Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Seton  Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

3,640 

Signal Hill Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 
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Location Current Hours 
Future Hours 

(changes in bold) 

Approximate 
additional 

hours per year3 

Southwood Mon to Thu: 10 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 10 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 10 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

 

 

Village Square Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun (Sep-May): 12 pm - 5 pm 

Mon to Thu: 9 am - 9 pm 

Fri: 9 am - 6 pm 

Sat: 9 am - 5 pm 

Sun: 12 pm - 5 pm 

75 
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Calgary Public Library Board Advocacy Priorities 
March 12, 2019 

Inclusion, Curiosity and Collaboration.  These values guide the Library Board’s advocacy efforts, to ensure that we 
are leading, connecting, and learning in focused ways that support the achievement of the Library’s vision Potentials 

Realized.  

Role Board Advocacy Priorities 
Leader Build and Maintain Relationships with Existing and Potential Partners 

Strategic networking to help create collaborative opportunities to sustain and expand 
Library services and programs 
For instance, identifying potential Library partners and connecting them with Library 
administration, attending events supporting Library partners 

Leader Promote Volunteerism at the Library 
Supporting the work of Volunteer Resources 
For instance, connecting potential volunteers with the Library and thanking volunteers 
individually or collectively for their contributions 

Leader Celebrate Library Initiatives 
Participating in the activation and launch of new Library initiatives and programs  
For instance, attending launch events and announcements.   

Connector Connect with Municipal, Provincial, or Federal Government Leadership 
Providing support for building stronger partnerships/relationships with all levels of 
government (primarily City of Calgary, but also relevant Provincial and Federal 
Ministries/Departments/Institutions) 
For instance, participating in meetings with new City Councillors or provincial and federal 
government representatives 

Connector Support the Calgary Public Library Foundation 
Working with the Foundation to identify roles and opportunities in support of the 
Foundation’s development goals 
For instance, participating in Foundation led Library tours, attending Foundation events 
and occasions recognizing philanthropic support of the Library 

Connector Represent the Community to the Library 
Conveying community information to the Library and leveraging community connections 
 
For instance, relaying community comments to administration, being an active citizen (e.g. 
in Community Associations) who gains intelligence and cultivates contacts beneficial to 
the Library 

Connector Attend the Alberta Library Conference 
Exploring and sharing best and leading practices with other Alberta libraries 
For instance, presenting new and successful Calgary Public Library Board initiatives, 
networking, and building relationships 

Learner Learn, Change, and Grow with the Library 
Building personal capacity to speak confidently about Library priorities and the continuing 
evolution of Library services and programs 
For instance, developing awareness and knowledge in key areas of focus for the Library 
on an ongoing basis, and through the Library Board Retreat (e.g. working with Indigenous 
communities, early literacy, Library service transformation) 
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Draft Unapproved  
Minutes 

Governance Committee Meeting 
Calgary Public Library Board 

New Central Library, 0-11 Boardroom 
Wednesday, March 6, 2019 

5:30pm 
 
 
In Attendance: 
 

Board Administration 
Ms. Shereen Samuels, Chair 
Ms. Janet Hutchinson 
Mr. Andrew Roydch 
Ms. Debra Giles 
Mr. Avnish Mehta (teleconference) 
 
Regret: 
NA 

Mr. Bill Ptacek, CEO 
Mr. Mark Asberg, Director, Service Delivery   
 
Guest: 
NA 

 
 
I. Treaty 7 Opening 

 
Ms. Samuels respectfully acknowledged that the Committee is meeting today at a place called 
Moh’kinsstis, a Blackfoot word that means elbow. The word describes the landscape of what is 
now known as Calgary, an area where the Elbow River meets the Bow River.  
 
It is in the spirit of respect and truth that we honor and acknowledge Moh’kinsstis, and recognize 
the traditional territories and oral practices of the Blackfoot people, the Nakoda people of the 
Stoney Nation, the Beaver people of the Tsuut’ina Nation, and the Métis Nation of Alberta, Region 
Three. This Library is one of 21 libraries across our city built on this traditional land. Finally, we 
acknowledge all people who make their homes in the Treaty 7 territory of Southern Alberta. 
 
 
II. Review of Agenda 
 
MOVED by Mr. Roydch that the Agenda be approved as presented.  

Carried Unanimously 
 
 
III. Approval of Minutes 
 
AMENDED minutes moved by Ms. Hutchinson, that the minutes of February 6, 2019, Governance 
Committee meeting be approved as amended:  

- Item VII Board Meeting Frequency. The Committee discussed the frequency of the 
Board meetings and will review and approve the new schedule at the March 2019 Board 
Meeting, not at the Board Retreat as previously documented.  

Carried Unanimously 
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IV. Business Arising from Minutes 
 

a. Naming Policy Discussion  
 

After deliberation, the Committee decided to present at the March 27th, 2019 Calgary 
Public Library Board meeting, the two research reports from ViTreo Group and the 
Executive Summary by Ms. Humphrey for the Board to review In-Camera. In addition to 
the six recommendations by ViTreo Group, the Committee will consider developing an 
additional Honorific Naming Policy for the Board’s consideration. The Committee also 
suggested that members of the Calgary Public Library Board who are interested in further 
learnings from ViTreo Group on the Naming Policy research could attend the upcoming 
Calgary Foundation Board meeting.   

 
 
V.  Orientation Process 
 
The Committee reviewed the orientation process and concluded that members of the Board will 
be given the opportunity to nominate other members of the Board before the Organizational 
Meeting through email; there will be no calls from the floor. Updates to the Board Buddy system 
were also discussed.  
 
 
Task Responsible Deadline 

The Board Buddy System will be reviewed, 
formalized and communicated to ensure new 
members are effectively oriented.  

 

Chair March  

Send out New Board Member Checklist to Chair  Administration March  

Library Buddies to be included in March Board 
Meeting Package 

Administration  March  

Advocacy Item: Library and External Networks to 
be added to Strategy & Community Committee 
agenda in April. 

Chair March  

 
 
VI. Board Meeting Frequency 
 
The Committee discussed the frequency of the Board meetings and concluded that the CEO 
Performance Review will be at the June Board Meeting.  
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Proposed Board Meeting Schedule 
  

Month Required Activity 
November • Board Meeting: 

o Q3 Reporting 
o First meeting of the year  
o Organizational Meeting 
o Welcome and onboarding new Board Members, if necessary 
o Annual Board self-evaluation 

December • No Meetings 
January • Board Meeting 

o Q4 Reporting 
o Approve budget 
o Discuss board retreat objectives 
o Review Strategic Initiatives and Committee Workplans for the 

Year 
• Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

February  • Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

March • Board Meeting 
o Review and approve audited financial statements 
o Any approvals needed in preparation for City of Calgary Civic 

Partners’ presentations 
o Any approvals or recommendations needed for the annual 

Board recruitment process is by reappointments.  
o Retreat, as designed by Strategy & Community Committee in 

consultation with the Board 
• Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

April • Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

May • Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

June • Board Meeting 
o Q1 Reporting  
o Annual Risk Review (Heat Map) (assuming this remains part 

of the risk management process) 
o CEO Performance Review – review and approve results  

July • Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
August • No Meetings 
September • Board Meeting 

o Q2 Reporting  



Calgary Public Library Board Meeting 
March 27, 2019 

55 
 

 
MOVED by Mr. Mehta that the proposed Calgary Public Library Board 2019 Meeting Schedule be 
approved as presented.  

Motion Carried  
Abstention: Ms. Giles 

 
 
VII. Other Business 
 
There was no other business.  
 

 
X. Adjournment 

 
MOVED by Ms. Hutchinson, that the meeting be adjourned at 6:30 pm. 
 
Transcribed by Dee Adekugbe 
 
 

 
              
       Ms. Shereen Samuels 

Chair 
 
     
 
              
       Mr. Bill Ptacek 

  

o Last meeting of the year and to ensure the Board meets at 
least once every four months 

o Receive Audit & Finance Committee’s Review of Q1 and Q2 
Financials, to highlight the financial status at this point in the 
year 

o Review progress on Strategic Initiatives laid out in January 
o Approve the Governance Committee’s recommended Board 

appointments and alternates, and officially recommend them 
to City Council 

o Callout for Alberta Library Conference presentations 
• Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 

October • Strategy & Community Committee Meeting 
• Audit & Finance Committee Meeting 
• Governance Committee Meeting 
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Report to the Calgary Public Library Board 
Calgary Public Library Foundation Update 

March 21, 2019 
 

Highlights  

Gifts Secured 
• $110,000 Government CEIS Grant for Job Desk 
• $49,953 Government CIP Grant for Childminding 
• $7,840 Government STEP Grant for Foundation Summer Students  

Asks Pending 
• $500,000 – $3,000,000 Individual Donor for Teen Space 
• $375,000 Pembina for Engine 23 programs 
• $250,000 Individual Donor for space at Central Library 
• $150,000 Co-op grant for Nose Hill Early Learning Centre 
• $107,000 Calgary Flames Foundation for Ultimate Summer Challenge 
• $103,459 Calgary Learns for Digital Learning In the Community 
• $100,000 Individual Donor for Giuffre Family Library 
• $75,000 Poelzer Foundation for Fish Creek Early Learning Centre 
• $40,000 Calgary Learns grant for Igniting the Fire  
• $20,000 Telus Community grant for AR/VR Coding Buddies 
• $17,425 Alberta Foundation for the Arts for 2019 Author in Residence  
• $10,000 Better World Books for Library Goes to Kindergarten 
• $7,840 Canada Summer Jobs Grant for Foundation Summer Students 

Declines 
• $350,000 Government Public Safety for Kids Hub 
• $229,110 Government CFEP Grant for Engine 23 
• $50,000 Individual Donor’s legacy gift 
• $19,870 Parks Canada for Recreation Leaders 

 

Other Highlights  

● Strategic Plan initiatives are underway including expansion of planned and legacy 
giving, streamlining of stewardship practices, cash flow forecasting and International 
Fundraising Conference planning. 

● Direct Mail was sent on March 4 with a “Be a Hero of Our Story” theme. 
● Discussions have begun to permit the use of Christian Moeller’s Central Library art 

for Library Store products. 
● 2018 Year in Review will be released the final week of March. 

Forecast 

● April 10 #LibraryGivingDay, an initiative across libraries in North America 
● May 9 Leave a Legacy event by Canadian Association of Gift Planners at Calgary Zoo 
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● May 14 Annual General Meeting at Central Library 
● May 25 Launch of Rosza Arts at the Library at Seton Library 
● May 27 Spring Direct Mail with match from BMO in support of Ultimate Summer Challenge 
● May 31 Julia Turnbull gift celebration at Central Library 
● June 11 Fundraising Breakfast at Central Library. We are seeking table captains to invite 8 

guests to learn more about the library 
● July 20 Book Drive at Nose Hill, Signal Hill and Fish Creek 
● July 26 Locked Library at Central Library which will launch a corporate challenge package 
● July 28 – July 30 Library Fundraising Conference at Central Library which has a waiting list of 

59 library fundraisers from North America 
 

Organizational News 

● Brent Buechler retired from his role as Vice-President on March 7 
● Maegan Marshall joined as Communication Associate on March 11 

 
Add In Campaign to Date 

• Campaign to Date Raised: $339,476,297 
• Year to Date Raised: $1,818,712 
• Total Campaign Gifts: 62,019 
• Unique Supporters: 18,867 
• Windows of Opportunity: 2,316 

o 2100 at $100 
o 128 at $2018 
o 88 at $5000 
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